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SUMMARY

A programme of archaetmpographical survewas undertaken at Caus Castle on2lBMarch 2016
alongside a UAV photogrammetric survey of the same area amdjetedelectrical resistance survey of a
section of the outer enclosuref CaugCarey 2016). This work was funded by the Castle Studiets(T/SiE)
to advance understanding of this welteserved, yet poorlyesearched site, and followed an earlier
unfunded magnetometry survey of the outer enclosure in 2015 (Carey 2015).

The archaedopographical and photogrammetric surveys have recorded a number of previously
unidentified features across the site, allowing a significant reinterpretation of the development of the
medieval castle and associated settlemdfgaturesn and around the inner bailey and motte of the castle
are particularly welpreserved, allowing a rappraisal of thdayout of this area in the later phases of the
OFaidf SQa E&we6rkfeaiesSiythieduter enclosure were less Mpeeserved, although a

number of important observations can still be made. A number of potentially important features outside of
the castle and Scheduled area were also recorded.
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It should be noted that Caus Castle is on private land and there is no access to the majority of the site
discussed in this report.

CC15: Caus Castle Westbury

Figure 1: General location of survey area
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Figure 1. Location map



INTRODUCTION

This report presents the results of the archaepographical survey of Caus Castle and a small area of
adjoining land to the soutlwest. It combines the evidence of a ground survey, usidifferential GPS and
handandtape technigues to create a hachured plan of earthwork forms across the site, and the digital 3D
model created via a UAMounted photogrammetric survey. The site had previously been subject to basic
surveys as part of its degion on various Ordnance Survey map editions, but never part of a concerted
archaeological investigation

The results of the geophysical surveys in the outer enclosure of the castle are reported elsewhere (Carey
2015; 2016), but will be integrated as paf a formal academic paper into the castle and its wider context.

PROJECT BACKGROUND

Site Location

Caus lies at a height of between 200m and 220m &id the underlying soils of the area are recorded as

well drained brown edhs of the BartorassociationRRagg et al 1984) overlying Downtonian Sandstone
(BGS, nd).The massive earthworks which contained the castle and borough are situated on a high ridge at
the east end of the Long Mountain, with extensive viéws its southern perimeter acreasthe Rea Brook
valley, although the site physically stands immediately over a smaklertaiy valley running through from

the hamlet of Wallo{Fig. 1) The topography of the surveleclinesirom NESW, with the area to the
immediate north of the innebailey representing the highest part of the site, and the area to the west of

the castle representing the lowest part of the site. This latter area of the outer bailey largely forms a
narrow but flattopped plateau, perhaps extending 60m across at its stigeint.

Aims and Objectives

The key aim of the archagopographical surveys was to assess thieixof upstanding archaeological
earthworksacross the site and feed this evidence intpraspective interpretation of settlement
development at the site. Wie a number of researchers have made statement concerning the origins,
development and contraction of Caus, there has not previously been any form of detailed archaeological
investigation at the site prior to 2015. This nmvasive, integrated survey apgach therefore is intended

to provide a new benchmark of evidenbased research.

Thesurveys objectives wer® identify any evidence to support or dispute the theory that the outer
enclosure at Caus origated as an Irom\ge hillfort, to develop an uredstanding of the treecovered mote
and-bailey castle, and assess any evidence of the borough settlement recorded at Caus in the medieval
period. In order to complete the narrative, the survey was utilized to identify evidence efiledkeval and
postmedievalredevelopment.
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Figure 2. A near-vertical perspective on a digital mode | of Caus. The motte and inner bailey (A), outer bailey (B) and
outer enclosure (C) are highlighted . Scale and orientation are approximate. (original model by Adam Stanford )

Archaeological and Historical Background

Caus is believed to be tisite of a small multivallate hillfoFig. 2: C)situated on a prominent hill
sometimes referred to as Caus Beatlthe south easterend of the Long Mountain (Scheduled
Monument NHLE 1020147).has been speculated th#tte castle may raitilise the site of an earlier Iron



Age hillfort Shropshire HER PRN249), although no conclusive has been identifiEdemedieval notte-
and-bailey castlaleveloped &the highest point of this conjectured earlier enclosure, altng
southeasterrperimeterof the hillfort.

It has been suggested, from placename evidence, that Caus Castle superseded the ringwork of Hawcocks
Mount, 1.2 km to the east (Barker 198Cats Castle is thought to have been built by Roger fitz Corbet in

the late 11th or early 12th century taking the name frbie ancestral home in Normandy.2 3 SNRa F1I (K
/| 2NDSUG O6RSNAGSR FTNRY (KS CNBYyOK 42 NRRoFeRalJ WONR 6 QU =
Montgomery (subsequently Earl of Shropshire) at the time of Norman Conquest, although his absence from
Domesday Book would suggest that he died prior to 1086 and his estates inherited by, laktsmurgh the

former may still have been alive in8D (VCH 1968, 311}he first documentary reference to the castle is in

1140 (Buteux, 1996: 2although ambiguity in terms of the relationship and potential transition from

I 60201 Q4 az2dzyd G2 /ldza /FadGtS Ol aidates MniroeBtag I A y ( &
evidence survives for the borough, effectively summarised by the Central Brkistoric Towns Survey

King John granted a market charter on 10 April 1200, to Robert Corbet, with the charter ifografiéed in

1248 The town expandithrough the 13th and 14th centuries, with 28 burgages recorded in 1274, 34 in

1300 and 58 in 1349 (Buteux, 1996, r&duced to 20 by 1455 and 10 in 1541 (VCH 1968, Bh8)original
Corbetline died out in 1347, and the barony passed to the Stafford faifiilg.last recmded housédn the

boroughis mentioned in 1614, although the castle had been subject to sigrifica@stment by the

Stafford and Thynne families in the 16th and early Ic&hturies, before it was surrendered to parliament

after a short siege during the English Civil War (VCH 1968, 309)

Documentary evidence makes reference to a number of buildingsinfrastructure featuresThese

include the chapel of St. Nicholas, faled in the 12th or 13th century, still furnished in 1612 and probably
used as a domestic chapel until the destruction of the castle (Shropshire HER PRN 05106). This has
traditionally been located as opposite the inner gate of the castle. In addition hyget of St. Margaret

has been recorded from documentary sources as founded in 1272 and last recorded in 1447, although its
location is unclear (Shropse HER PRN 05107). It has been suggested thahdire interior street, running
between East Gatand Wallop Gate wastill in use as part of a field road in 1§E8though a reeading of

the first Ordnance Survey edition would suggest that it shows a track leading from the eastern entrance in
the outer enclosure to the castle, and a second track skidnogind the north side of the outer enclosure
(VCH 1968, 310).

Archaeologically the site has been subject to passing discussion (Beresford 1967, 1B&1#f@m and
Barker 1992), but has never been subject to a recorded excavation or siheegurremreport therefore
represents the first detailed analysis of the archdepographical form of the castle.

ARCHAEOQOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY

The ground survey of Caus was undertaken using a Trimble dGPS, with the results infilled withdhand

tape methods irareas of high tree cover, as around the motte and inner bailey of the castle. The site was
surveyed using the analytical earthwork survey approach (Bowden 1999), with earthwork feature identified
visually, the top and bottoms of slope recorded, and theesity of slope indicated by a hachuring

symbology. Interpretation is explicitly embedded into the data collection stage of this approach, with
models of understanding of a site development evolving as the arct@Exgraphy is recordedddam

Stanford of A&rial Cam produced the photogrammetric survEgr ease of accessibility the report will

primarily use the model created by Adam Stanford to identify features visually, only using the hachure plan
for the otherwise inaccessible motEnd-bailey area of thesite.



RESULTS

The motteand-bailey @astle(fig. 3)
Due to dense tree cover the central castle area was not accessible to the photogrammetric and dGPS

surveys, with coverage in this area relying on handtape methods of recording. The large circutaotte
stands at the souttwest end of this areaat one of the highest points of the hill measure<.55m in

diameter at its basandc.17m in diameter at its summit, standirmgl2m in height. If at some stage a ditch
had separated the motte from the Hay area to the northwest, then the motte base may have originally
been a more oval shape. Several slight earthwork scraps divide up the summit of the motte, and at least
two phases of overlying standing masonry recordedegraded terraced aremas reorded partwayup

the slope of the south side of the motteneasuring.40m in length and.2m in width This appears to be

part of an access way to a rear entrance in the castle to the seest of the motte, possibly the
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Figure 3. Hachure plan of the mo
can be seen in the inner bailey. A terrace on the south side of the motte
south -west of the motte.

tte and inner bailey. A rectangular courtyard arrangement with flanking buildings
links the inner bailey to a postern gate to the

No ditch was recorded in the area between the motte and the bailey area, and the only traces of an
enclosing rampart in the bailey were at the nogthast end by the principal entrae into the castleThe
rectangular bailey area measure30Om byc45m.The bailey area idividedinto a number of small
rectangularenclosedspaces around its perimetéry low earthen banks and masonry elememsdth a
large, presumably open, space hetcentre measuring at least 35m by 20&catters of apparent building
material were identified, including early pestedieval bricks, and some areas of mortared masdmsjtu
were recordedThe largest of the rectangular enclosed spaces was on the ,moghsuring:.24m byc20m,



with a lower set, adjoining square enclosure measudig by 7m internally. At the norttwest end of the
bailey the enclosed areas adjowo standing oval areaof rampart bank up to 3m in height, presumably
representing the castle gatehousEhe intervening area between these two sections of rampart bank and
adjoining enclosures measures 4m wide and 25m in length, and is likely to be the central passageway
entrance into the castle bailg¥ig. 4) At the southeast end of the bailey, at the base of the motte, is a less
well-defined rectangular enclosure roughly measur@®0Pm byc.15m, which includes internally a well
preserved masondined open well.

Figure 4. The entrance to the inner bailey viewed from the north  -east, from a position in the outer bailey.

The castle is surrounded by a large ditch, varying in width r@&20m and up to 6m in depth. Around

the southwesternand northwestern sides of the castle is a smaller outer ditch measurifi4m wide,

the outer of which partially consistsf a counterscarp bank. This outer ditch widens significantly on the
south-western end as it reaches its terminus, at whictgsta nearcontinuous stretch of bank runs up to

the inner castle ditch, possibly indicating the existence of a rear entrance into the castle compound. Inside
the inner and outer ditches of this area are a large face of-outknudstone surfacéFig. 5)and possibly

the origin of some of the masonry fragments still identifiable on the ground at CaesdHition of this

rock outcropsuggests that it continues beneath the motte, and that the latter mound may have been built
over an outcrop on the summitf the hill.




































